ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2002
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 56
"An Act relating to m ni num wages."

- MOVED CSHB 56(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 34

Requesting the nenbers of the Al aska delegation in the United
States Senate to urge the Mjority Leader of the United States
Senate to allow President CGeorge W Bush's econonic security
package to receive a vote.

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 56

SHORT TI TLE: M NI MUM WAGE
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) KOTT

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/12/01 0071 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/12/01 0071 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 16/ 01 0104 (H COSPONSOR(S): HARRI' S

01/19/01 0134 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MULDER

01/ 29/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2002



01/ 29/ 01 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 29/ 01 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 14/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 14/ 01 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 14/ 01 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 06/ 02 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Pete Kott

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 204

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 56, Version F, on behalf of
Representative Kott, sponsor.

ED FLANAGAN, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

PO Box 21149

Juneau, Al aska 99802-1149

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 56, encouraging the
committee to conme up with a bill congruent with the governor's
proposal and the initiative.

JACK AMON, President

Al aska Restaurant and Beverage Associ ation

700 Dogwood

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 56, supporting an escal ator
of 50 percent of the Consuner Price Index, rather than 100
percent .

BARBARA CRAVER, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legislative Affairs Agency

State Capitol

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As bill drafter, answered questions on HB
56, primarily regarding whether the legislation is substantially
simlar to the initiative.

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyi st

for the AFL-CI O

710 West 9t h Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 56.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2002



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-12, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
St andi ng Comm ttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3: 20 p. m
Represent ati ves Murkowski, Meyer, Kott, Rokeberg, and Crawford
were present at the call to order. Representatives Halcro and
Hayes arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI informed the conmittee that a group of seventh-
grade students from the Pacific Northern Acadeny in Anchorage
was in attendance. She wel coned the students.

HB 56-M NI MUM WAGE

Number 0031

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 56, "An Act relating to m ni nrum wages."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI expl ai ned that HB 56 was scheduled for invited
testinmony only. She remnded listeners that there was
substantial public testinony |ast session on the two different
occasions that HB 56 was before the conmttee.

Nunber 0157

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS), version 22-LS0342\F, Craver, 1/18/02, as the
work draft. There being no objection, Version F was before the
committee.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT, speaking as the sponsor of HB 56, explained
that last year there were several hearings on mninmum wage.
[Version F] imtates the initiative put forward over the sumrer,
Wi th one exception: [Version F] says the rate of inflation wll
be 50 percent of the Consunmer Price Index (CPl), instead of the
original 100 percent.

Number 0259

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how [Version F] differs from the
original bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said originally HB 56 had a snaller increase
in the mninmum wage and an increnental, two-step increase. The
CPl index was not in the original version of HB 56.

Number 0310

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Pete Kott, Al aska State
Legislature, explained HB 56 and offered some background.
Dating back to 1938, when the United States established the Fair
Labor Standards Act, she said, Anericans have believed it is
entirely appropriate for the government to establish a mninmm
wage floor for workers. IMmedi ately after statehood, Al aska
statutes were drafted to echo that conviction. Dating back to
1959, this continues to be the preanble in Al aska's Wge and
Hour Act. It reads as follows:

It is the public policy of the state to establish
m ni rum wage and overtime conpensation standards for
workers at levels <consistent wth their health,
efficiency, and general well-being; and it 1is the
public policy of the state to safeguard existing
m ni rum wage and overtine conpensation standards that
are adequate to maintain the health, efficiency, and
gener al wel | - bei ng of wor ker s agai nst unfair
conpetition of wage and hour standards that do not
provi de adequate standards of I|iving.

MS. SYLVESTER said the sponsor believes that HB 56 will provide
for a fair mninum wage to Alaska's |owest-paid workers, by
hel ping to ensure a mninum standard of living for the health,
safety, and well-being of every Al askan. The bill notes that
currently Washington State, Or egon, and California have
surpassed Alaska in providing for a mnimm standard of 1iving
for their workers. For a mninumwage to be fair, M. Sylvester
said, it nust be indexed through the cost-of-living to help |ow
i ncome workers keep pace with inflation.

Number 0430

MS. SYLVESTER noted that HB 56 anmends [AS 23. 10.065(a)], so that
effective January 1, 2003, an enployer will pay a wage of not
| ess than $7.15 an hour. She said that each year, no later than
Septenber 30, the Departnent of Labor [& Workforce Devel opnent
(DLWD)] shall adjust the mninmm wage for inflation, effective
the followng year. The m ninum wage shall be adjusted for
inflation calculated at 50 percent of the CPI for Anchorage, or
$1 nore than the federal m nimum wage, whichever is greater.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2002



Number 0478

M5. SYLVESTER said the rationale for a m nimum wage of $7.15 an
hour ties into pending federal |egislation. She said Al aska
seeks to be $1 ahead of the federal m nimm wage, and if federal
| egi sl ati on passes, the national mninum wage wll be $6.15.
She noted areas not addressed by HB 56: an enpl oyer may not
apply tips or gratuities given to an enployer as credit toward
the mnimum hourly wage, and workers enployed as public schoo

bus drivers are specifically excluded from [subsection] (a),
since they are covered in [subsection] (b).

Number 0540

MS. SYLVESTER said the sponsor feels that HB 56 is "simlar
enough to the initiative."

CHAI R MURKOWBKI responded that the commttee will want to hear
how Version F is substantially simlar to the initiative. She
asked if HB 56 wll affect the school bus drivers who, by
statute, are now required to receive two and a half tines the
m ni mum wage.

MS. SYLVESTER replied that current statute requires that the

school bus drivers receive tw tinmes the mninum wage. If the
m ni mrum wage is raised to $7.15, then a school bus driver's wage
will be two times the new mninum wage - but it won't apply

until after that driver's current contract [expires].

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if this is why there is no fiscal note
showi ng that i ncrease. She asked whether "that is what the
current contracts say."

Nunmber 0623

M5. SYLVESTER reported that she'd checked to find out what the
i npacts would be; of the four communities she called, all their
contracts will expire in 2006. She said she hadn't called the
Department of Education and Early Developnent to find out if
"there was a systemthere.”

CHAI RVAN MURKOWSKI i nquired whether or not there is "sonething
within the contract that says this is the price, unless the
m ni mum wage shoul d be increased.”

Number 0660

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said he hasn't had the opportunity to
research the [public school bus driver] contracts. He said he
expects that they are "tightly witten.” He suggested the DLW
m ght have sone insight on this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to AS 23.10.065. He said when
the change was passed in 1990 which nandated that school bus
drivers receive two tines the mninmum wage, subsection (c) was

put into statute, which essentially says, "If you have existing
contracts, you don't have to give thema raise until you renew "
He said this still doesn't address the question relating to

2005, when all of the contracts cone due, because by 2005 the
m ni nrum wage could be around $7.50. He asked, "Applying what we
are paying today, if [HB 56] were to be enacted tonorrow, do you
have any idea of the inmediate fiscal inpact?"

Number 0750

MS. SYLVESTER said one could make a guess as to the immediate
i npact. She expl ai ned:

One bus conpany seens to feel they're tied to the
statute, and they can't go farther than that, twce
the m ni mum wage. The |ocal [bus conpany] here in
Juneau is quite a lot higher. So they have their own
busi nesses and are free to nmke their contracts wth
t he school districts.

Number 0787

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said it isn't that sinple. [ The bus
conpani es] nmake the contracts with the school districts, and the
state is charged with appropriating the noney to pay for those
contracts. He said this has been a concern over the |ast couple
of years. The contracts are negotiated on the |ocal |evel, and
the state is responsible for paying these contracts w thout a
say. He asked, "If [HB 56] was applicable starting tonorrow,
what type of fiscal inmpact would we be | ooking at?"

MS. SYLVESTER said she doesn't have that information, but one
coul d guess by conparing bus drivers' wages today to what they
woul d be years from now.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if Ms. Sylvester could nake a guess.

MS. SYLVESTER said she doesn't have that infornmation.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2002



Number 0850

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested that "if we used the last five
years' CPl index growh at 50 percent, and not the 100 percent
as in the initiative, in five years the mninmm wage would be
around $7.75." He said that to project the bus driver's wages,
one would double $7.75. He said in five years, at 100 percent,
t he m ni num wage woul d be around $8. 56.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, for the sake of the visiting students,
asked why the bus drivers - but not the janitors or teachers -
wer e guaranteed tw ce the m ni nrum wage.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT answered that an inportant factor was the
public safety issue involved in transporting children to and
from school

Number 0930

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why the CPI is at 50 percent instead
of 100 percent in [Version F].

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT answered that the initial version didn't

have the CPl index in it, and the initiative has 100 percent; in
the spirit of conprom se, 50 percent was chosen for the proposed
Cs. He said sone |egal opinions suggest it will probably neet

the constitutionality [test], although perhaps it mght not. He
said he believes [Version F] is substantially simlar to [the
initiative], and that if it were tested in court to determne
whether it is substantially simlar, it would be upheld.

Number 0982

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked Representative Kott if he has requested a
opinion from the attorney general's office with regard to
whether HB 56 is substantially simlar [to the initiative].

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT nentioned the attorney general and the
Departnent of Law.

M5. SYLVESTER said, "They were asked, and they declined to
provide their guidance for this issue.” She offered her belief
that based on the constitution, statutes, and Warren v. Boucher,
the guidance is that the language of HB 56 is substantially
simlar. The intent of the initiative - although it is rather
vague and doesn't state 100 percent of the increase of the CPl -

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2002



seens to disconnect the mninmum wage from both the state and
federal |egislative processes; instead, it connects to the cost-
of -living indicator.

MS. SYLVESTER said the problemis that the m ninum wage is being
devoured by inflation. She added, "Once you connect it to an
el evator, take it away from the legislature, that seens to be
the intent of the actual initiative, rather than putting it at
100 percent or 50 percent."”

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked Ms. Sylvester if she knew how nany ot her
states tie their mninumwage to an "indexer."

Number 1069

M5. SYLVESTER replied that it seens to be the trend, and that
she knows California and Wshington State have done this
al r eady.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI said she believed the House Labor and Conmerce
Standi ng Comm ttee had that information introduced | ast year.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT offered his belief that the nunber of states
was in the upper 30s.

Nunber 1094

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD respectfully disagreed [with earlier
di scussi on]. He explained that he feels the mninmm wage w ||
continue to be devoured by inflation if it is "locked in at 50
percent of the price increase.” He reported that today he'd
dropped off a new anendnent that would change the CPlI increase
back to 100 percent. He said he and the other petitioners had
spent a lot of tinme gathering signatures for the increase to be
100 percent of the CPI, and they feel it should be at 100
per cent .

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said the lack of a fiscal note, even for
"the out years,"” is troubl esone, because fiscal notes extend out
to FY [fiscal year] 08. He said if there are a ot of contracts
expiring at the sane tine in 2005, that obviously neans that
starting in 2006 there is going to be an additional fiscal
i npact on the state.

Nunber 1205

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he was curious why sone nunber has
not been plugged in yet to anticipate the fiscal inpact starting
in 2006. He asked whether, because of the connection w th what
school bus drivers nust make, there is a |egal argunent that
sonehow by this petition the voters are actually voting on
making the legislature appropriate noney, which is known to be
unconstitutional . He asked if this could sonehow be an
appropriation of funds.

Nunber 1243

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said he did not wite the fiscal note and
does not know why a zero was entered, but guessed that this
m ght have been too difficult to project.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT addressed Representative Halcro's question
relating to appropriation of funds. He said, "This is clearly a
question for the legal people to determ ne whether or not, by
passage of that initiative, it is somehow usurping our power to
appropriate, or causing us to appropriate.”

CHAI R MJURKOABKI said Barbara Craver with Legislative Legal and
Research Services was in attendance and m ght be able to address
this issue later.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER recalled that the conmttee had heard
testinmony from sonme fast-food restaurants and hotels |ast year;
their concern was if the mninmm wage was increased, then they
woul dn't be able to hire some of the younger kids or sone of the
kids with special needs.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked whether, if the mninum wage
increased, it would affect the fast-food and hotel businesses,
or if there is "something already in statute that allows for
trai ning purposes that (indisc.) have to pay m ni nrum wage. "

Nunber 1342

M5. SYLVESTER said this is an interesting issue because the
exenptions were put in statute at the beginning, and do allow
for training wages and apprenticeships. She read from AS
23.10. 070, which states:

To the extent necessary to prevent curtailnent of

opportunities of enploynent the conm ssioner nmay by
regul ations or orders provide for the enploynent at

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 6, 2002



wages |lower than the mninmum wage prescribed in AS
23.10. 050 - 23.10.150 of

(1) an individual whose earning capacity is
inpaired by physical or nental deficiency, age, or
injury, at the wages and subject to the restrictions
and for the period of time that are fixed by the
commi ssi oner; and

(2) an apprentice at the wages that are approved
by the comm ssioner; or

(3) a learner at the wages and subject to the
restrictions and for the periods of tinme that are
fi xed by the conm ssioner.

MS. SYLVESTER reported that |ast year the comm ssioner of the
DLWD had indicated he has never processed any of these types of
certifications. She said it seens to be a policy difference
that the DLWD has with this portion of the statute. She offered
that it could be a relief that sone people seem to be needing.
She cited an exanple of a small business that is considering
hiring a young individual who | acks any work history. The first
question is whether this person wll be able to cone to work.
At $7.10, does the business want to take this chance? She said
maybe now is the tinme for sonmething to be enacted at the
regul ati on | evel whereby an enployer could tenporarily try a new
enpl oyee out for a period of tine.

Nunmber 1446

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said although there is a training-wage
provision in the statute, the comm ssioner of the DLW never
approved the program No one has ever cone forward because they
know it wll never be approved. He added, "What we need to
really make this workable is a change in statute to allow for
the program to be workable, wthout the individual, discrete
consent every time the comm ssioner [of the DLW has to give
his blessing to do sonething like this." He said this would be
consistent with the federal |aw, which does provide for this
provision. He commented that this is a matter of policy, and he
thinks that it is the "wong policy."

Number 1514

ED FLANAGAN, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opnent, testified before the committee. He suggested the
mar ket dictates that the training provision is (indisc.) because
the m ni num wage has been so low relative to average wages and
what the market has conmanded in the state for years. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2002



recalled that when he was deputy [comm ssioner] during Governor
Know es' first term someone requested [an exenption] and was
sent a form but the person never sent it back. He suggested
that if there is a higher mnimm wage, then there may be nore
interest in applying for [an exenption].

Nunber 1560
COM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said the current |law does not apply to a

person under the age of 18 who works 30 hours or less a week.
He reported that a restaurant representative had told him this

is just too difficult to keep track of. Comm ssi oner Fl anagan
said he didn't find the representative's conment to be very
credi ble, however. A provision of statute allows an enployer -

if the enployee is under 18 years of age and is working 30 hours
or less a week - to "fall under the training wage in the federal
| aw. " He added, "W do have those unused student-Iearner
exenptions. "

COM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he has learned a |lot regarding
workers with special needs since the Division of Vocational
Rehabi litation has noved under the DLWD. He stated that "within
the advocacy community for folks with disabilities, | think
there's a real push to not have those so-called sheltered
wor kshops and | owered wages to try and bring folks up to speed
where they can command the actual m nimum wage." He expl ai ned
that any future conm ssioner would have the discretion to not
make any person go out and apply for any type of exenption.

COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said in regard to [Version F], "W're

getting there." He said 13 nonths ago the governor asked the
| egi slature to raise the mnimm wage to $7.15 and to index it
to inflation with a full CPI. He agreed with finding (4) in

[ Version F], which states:

A fair mninmm wage indexed to the cost-of-living wll
hel p | owincone workers keep pace with inflation.

COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said the above finding does not state "a
fair index to half the cost-of-living."

Nunber 1642
COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said the process for determning the CPI
on the federal |evel has been adjusted within the past few years

so that it is nore conservative than it was prior to 1998. He
stated that he thought over the last three years the CPl has

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2002



only averaged "about .9 or maybe 1.2." He said this figure has
been less than the increase in the average weekly wage. He
noted that the cost-of-living has been rising slower than wages
in the state in the past three years. He said there is a |lot of
statewi de support for raising the mninum wage to $7.15, wth
the index being tied to the CPI. He encouraged the conmttee to
"go that extra last step" and cone up with a bill that is truly
congruent with the governor's proposal and the initiative.

Nunmber 1686

COM SSI ONER  FLANAGAN said that in 1990 [in the 15th
| egi sl ature], then-Representative Donley helped [HB 305] pass,
whi ch established the m ni num wage for school bus drivers at two
times the mninum wage. He remarked, "There was a situation
where every five years, a new bidder would cone in and basically
undercut the wages that during the five-year contract had naybe
been built up." He said this has been a state law for 12 years
wi t hout much di scussion or controversy.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Comm ssioner Flanagan if he'd said
the Anchorage CPI has been less than 1 percent for the past
coupl e of years.

Number 1770

COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he thought [the Anchorage CPI] was
"1.2 last year and .9 the year before.™

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG recalled an Anchorage web site that
showed, in the first half of 2000, a CPI of 2.9 percent.

COWMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he didn't have that information with
him but believed the [CPI] to be Iower than the increase in the
average weekly wage. [ Reading from a paper handed to hin], he
said, "1.7, 1.0, and 1.5 is showing for 2000, 1999, and 1998."
He said the CPI is done twice a year, and he doesn't know how
one-hal f of the year would be much higher than the other half.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered his experience that t he
Anchorage CPI has actually been lower than the national all-
urban or the clerical workers indexes. He asked Comm ssioner
Fl anagan if he knows why the Anchorage CPI was selected to
represent Al aska.

Nunber 1796

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2002



COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN answered that the only published CPlI for
the state of Alaska is the Anchorage CPI. Most contracts in
Al aska that utilize a CPl refer to the Anchorage CPI.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whet her sone adjustnents were nade
a couple of years ago that made the CPlI nobre conservative. He
said there is ongoing controversy about the efficacy and the
accuracy of the Consuner Price Index.

COM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he thinks there wll always be
controversy over the CPI, but that it has dimnished since the
revision.

Number 1831

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, in regard to the training wage
situation, that he thought a program had to be approved by the
DLWD at | arge, and not with an individual application.

COW SSI ONER FLANAGAN concurr ed. He added that he didn't know
how el aborate a program had to be.

Nunber 1867
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG interjected to ask why $7.15 was

selected as the proposed new m ni num wage. He said it |ooked
| i ke a 25.9 percent increase.

Number 1906

COM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he believes the $7.15 figure was
initiated in [DLMD] internal adm nistration discussions. He
recalled that the governor's bill had a two-step process whereby

the m ni mum wage woul d have been $6.40 |ast October [2001], and
then $7.15 this com ng Cctober [2002].

COW SSI ONER FLANAGAN nentioned that there has been a |ot of
di scussion over the past few years about raising the federal
m ni rum wage, but it has never happened. He pointed out that
$7.15 is a dollar over the federal m nimum wage. For a famly
of four with one wage earner working 40 hours and the other wage
earner working 20 hours - or if one of them worked 60 hours - at
$7.15 an hour the family would just barely be over the poverty

i ne. He said this is one reason $7.15 was chosen as the
proposed new m ni nrum wage. If Alaska nobves the mninmum wage to
$7.15 on January 1, it will probably be the highest m ni nrum wage

in the United States. He predicted that Washington State woul d

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2002



probably be over $7.00 an hour by 2002 because its m ni nrum wage
is tied to the CPI

Nunber 1978
COMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN referred to the 26-percent increase, and

poi nted out that when the "50 cent Al aska over the federal" was
put in, the federal was a dollar, so the differential was 50

percent. At 50 cents over $5.15, now it's under 10 percent,
however . He said he doesn't think $7.15 is an inappropriate
j unp.

Number 2000

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI indicated nothing in statute says it has to
relate to a program Rather, it refers to individuals whose
earning capacity is inpaired, an apprentice, or a |earner. She

asked if the exenptions are in regulation.

COMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN said he doesn't believe so, but he hasn't
| ooked at the regulations because there haven't been any
requests during his four years as deputy [conm ssioner] or three
years as conm ssioner. He said he believes when those were
first J[introduced], especially the apprentices and student
| earners, the mninmm wage was a nuch |arger percentage of what
woul d have been a journeyman wage for the craft. He said, "A
50- percent or 60-percent apprentice mght actually have had to
be bel ow t he m ni rum wage. W' re talking the '60s."

Nunmber 2048

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Comm ssioner Flanagan, if the
| egislature were to craft a training regulation, whether the
[ DLMD] would be willing to work with the legislature on it.

COWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN answered that he'd certainly look at it.
He commented that if Alaska has a $7.00 m ni mum wage, there wll
be a change, and it's to be seen whether there actually is any

di sl ocati on. He added, "You're convinced there wll be; I'm
not . VWho knows who's right?” He added that he does have a
concern if the legislature wants to do sonething like the
federal training wage, whereby soneone under 20 - which he

thinks is too old - during the first 90 days on a job gets paid
a sub-m ni nrum wage. He said he wouldn't support sonething like
t hat .

Number 2120

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG disagreed wth Comm ssioner Flanagan
about the inpact on the econony. He said nmany people with smal
busi nesses have entry-level positions and are concerned about
their labor costs when having to train youngsters who tend to be
"sonmewhat transient." He agreed it is an admnistrative problem
and that "keeping track of the 90 days" could be a problem al so.
He commented that he doesn't think it's entirely unfair to be
able to hire people at less than a given wage if they are in a
training position. The expectations and scope of duties during
the 90 days nmay be restricted for this limted period of tine.

Number 2173

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, "Isn't collective bargaining the
cornerstone of organi zed | abor ?"

COM SSI ONER  FLANAGAN replied yes, but suggest ed t hat
Representati ve Rokeberg may want to direct that question to an
AFL-ClI O representati ve. He said many people aren't covered by
collective bargaining, and he thinks organized |abor has
hi storically supported the wage fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE  ROKEBERG remarked that he is disturbed,
di scussing mninmum wage, when politicians "are representing
busi nesspeople and the |aborers of the state and unilaterally,
wi t hout any bargaining, dictate an anount of basic wage." He
said this is pushing the wage floor of Al aska up by alnost 26
percent .

Nunber 2234

COWMWM SSI ONER FLANAGAN offered that people "far and beyond”
organi zed | abor support the societal good of a m ni num wage.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there is economc theory that says
i npl enenting a mninum wage - and, in particular, a high m ninmm
wage - is going to cost jobs and job opportunities for entry-
| evel workers.

Number 2253

COWMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN i ndicated [the DLWD] has recent experience
and that there have been a |lot nore detailed studies of the |ast
two federal increases nationally. The job-reducing effect has
been found to be nmuch less than in previous nodels. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 6, 2002



acknow edged that there still will be people studying and com ng
fromthe other direction also.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he agrees wth Comm ssioner
Fl anagan when those studies are done in a growh econony.

COWMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN nentioned continued enploynment growth in
[ Al aska], "hopefully for the foreseeable future.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the enploynent growh under the
current adm ni stration has been out st andi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said |ast year when [HB 56] was heard in
commttee, several questions were asked by the commttee; he had
a summary of sone of the answers, although in sone cases there

was no data available to answer the questions. He said one
guestion that kept comng up was, "How nmany of these folKks
maki ng m ni nrum wage are the head of househol d?" The response

was that there was no current data on how nmany heads of
househol ds are earning the m ni num wage.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed out that the fiscal note from the
Departnent of Health and Social Services says there is a
projected savings in the "out years of an average of about

$500, 000. " He read from the fiscal note, "Approximtely 670
adults «currently receive ATAP [Adult Tenporary Assistance
Progran] assistance," because they have jobs paying $5.65 to

$7.15 an hour. He asked whether there are 670 adults who are
heads of househol ds who [earn m ni mum wage] .

Number 2333

COWMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN responded that it would be better for the
Department of Health and Social Services to speak on its fisca

note, but said it 1is a "very discrete population that
[ Departnent of Health and Social Services] have very detailed
information on." He said he didn't know if one could

extrapolate the figure out to the population at |arge.
Nunmber 2360

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if there are adults who are the
heads of households who are making mninum wage, and in all
reality living below the poverty line. He asked, "Wuldn't it
be safe to assune that they would be getting sone kind of
assistance fromthe state?"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 6, 2002



COMM SSI ONER FLANAGAN replied that there isn't a figure for the
popul ation at large. He pointed out that there nmay be people in
such situations who aren't getting assistance because maybe they
are working two jobs, or three jobs between two wage earners.
The fiscal note is based on getting transitional assistance, and
if an enployee has nore countable earned income - which wll
happen when soneone gets a raise from $6.50 to $7.15 an hour -
one can conpute a figure. He added, "That's probably a dollar
for dollar at some point, or close toit."

Number 2425

JACK  AMON, Pr esi dent, Al aska Rest aur ant and Bever age
Associ ation, said the reason Comm ssioner Flanagan has not had
any applications for the training wage exenption is because "al
of the fast-food operator that [|'ve talked to have found the
regul ati ons sonewhat (indisc.)." He offered that owners would
take advantage of the training-wage exenption if [the
| egislature] "would make it nore friendly along the printable
statute.” He asked if the commttee would find a way to step
the increase instead of going to $7.15. He said he would
support the 50 percent of the CPlI, rather than 100 percent.

TAPE 02-12, SIDE B

Number 2491
MR AMON said, "If we could conpromse even on a two-step
increase, ... that would certainly help a lot of small enployers

to absorb the increase."
Nunber 2466

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked M. Anon what the average starting
salaries are for jobs in his industry.

MR. AMON reported that in the table-service restaurant industry,
there are people who earn mninum wage. However, they are
ti pped workers, and their "average wages across the industry”
are $8.50 to $15.00 an hour, including tips. He said today the
| omest an enployer could really pay soneone in a dishwashing
position is between $7.50 and $8.50 an hour.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Anon about sone conversations he
has had with fast-food enployers regarding the training-wage
exenption. He referred to the single application for a
trai ni ng-wage exenption Conmm ssioner Flanagan said he'd sent out
that was never returned. He said sone of the testinony has been

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 6, 2002



that the training wage is difficult to obtain, and on the other
hand, it's not difficult - one just has to ask.

Nunmber 2369

MR. AMON said he isn't an expert on this topic, but it is his
understanding that it isn't difficult to apply for the
exenption, but that it is difficult to admnister. He said,
"That 30-hour-a-week thing made it difficult to schedule
enpl oyees, because sonetines you m ght have to keep sonebody an
extra hour or so, and if you went over 30 hours, that was the
trigger." He reported that the "admi nistration costs [are] what
st opped them"

Nunmber 2336

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Anmon if any enployee at the
Marx Brothers [Cafe] earns m ni num wage.

MR. AMON reported that new servers earn mninmm wage, but,
including tips, still make $15 to $25 an hour.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there any restaurant operations
in Al aska have as nany as 100 enpl oyees.

MR. AMON answered, "Definitely.”
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d:

Right now, ny calculation - even if you worked a 40-
hour week - would be $226 an hour ... plus tips. And
if you have a 25-percent increase, that 1is $56.
Therefore, if you have 100 people working for you, it
woul d be $5,600 a week that your overhead would go up,
and over $20,000 a nonth.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Anon what he thought would
happen to that restaurateur when that happens.

Nunber 2275

MR. AMON answered that the restaurant has to raise nmenu prices.
He explained that the average restaurant, including his own, is
a good-performng restaurant if the net bottom line is 6 to 8
percent of gross revenue. He commented that there is a slim
profit margin, but there are high | abor costs. Most restaurants
expect 25 to 30 percent of their gross revenue to go to | abor.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 6, 2002



Number 2229

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked Ms. Craver if she could speak on the issue
of "substantially simlar."

BARBARA  CRAVER, At t or ney, Legi slative Legal and Research
Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, responded that the nost
inportant case relating to this issue in Alaska is Warren v.
Boucher . This case discussed how simlar legislation has to be
in order to take an initiative off a ballot. She said, "The
test that they use seens to be sonewhat wei ghted on dependi ng on
how conplex the issue is that you are talking about.” She
of fered that she thinks the general consensus is that [HB 56] is
not very conplex and is fairly straightforward. A m ni num wage
will be set, and perhaps - or perhaps not - wll have an
i ncrease based on the CPI

Number 2192

M5. CRAVER commented that the court did say that it would allow
nore latitude for the legislature to enact a program that the
(indisc.) was very conpl ex. She said legislation would have to
be pretty simlar to the initiative in order to get the
| i eut enant governor to take the initiative off of the ballot.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked: If HB 56 has the exact sane |anguage as
the initiative, "but we have added sonething on," does that get
beyond the real mof "substantially simlar"?

Nunber 2149

M5. CRAVER said she doesn't know and hasn't been able to find
any case |law where there were extra itens added to an initiative
that did not inpair the main purpose of the initiative. She
offered her "gut instinct"” that if it doesn't inpair what the
initiative is trying to acconplish, she doesn't understand why
it would be held back. She reiterated that there is no case |aw
to support this.

Number 2122

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked Ms. Craver if, in her opinion, Version [F]
is substantially simlar to the initiative.

M5. CRAVER said she doesn't think she could say Version F is
substantially simlar, and that "we just have to put the issue

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 6, 2002



out there." She asked, "Is 50 percent of the CPlI close enough
to 100 percent to be substantially simlar, or not?" Those
facts have not been presented to Al askan courts, or any other
court that has been researched. She offered that it is closer
but obvi ously not exactly the sane.

CHAIR MURKOWSKI reported that if HB 56 noved forward and was
chall enged as not being substantially simlar, the initiative
would remain on the ballot. She asked when a chall enge woul d be
made.

M5. CRAVER explained that the |ieutenant governor is asked to
confer with the attorney general to determ ne whether or not the

| egislation is substantially simlar. If they decide that the
| egislation is substantially simlar, then the initiative is
taken off of the ballot. M. Craver said she thought a decision

had to be declared in tine for sonmeone opposing that decision to
be able to take action. She said there is a period of tinme so
that the issue of whether the initiative goes on the ballot or
not is actually debated in court; that's when the decision is
made. It is either put back on or is taken off the ballot.

Number 2039

CHAI RVAN MURKOWSKI asked if there was a scenario in which the
| egislation would be challenged in court while the initiative
was still noving forward - basically having it happen on both
fronts.

M5. CRAVER offered that she thinks this could happen. If the
| i eut enant governor decides the legislation isn't substantially
simlar, the initiative remains on the ballot. If the
| egi sl ature has adjourned and passed the legislation, it depends
on the effective date. The initiative becones |aw 90 days after
it is certified, so maybe in md-March, if it passed, the
m ni rum wage would rise. It depends on the legislation that the
| egi sl ature has passed. If the legislation cane into effect
prior to md-March, it mght be effective for a while, but an
initiative cannot be repealed with [legislation]. She said she
doesn't know the answer.

Nunber 1993
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT reported that he'd received a nenorandum
from Ms. Craver [dated January 14, 2002, to Representative Brian

Porter, which referenced a nenorandum dated February 28, 2002
from Terry Kramer to Representative Porter]. Representati ve

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 6, 2002



Kott noted that the neno indicates the inflation-adjustnent
section may not be substantially the sanme neasure as the m ni num
wage [initiative]. The nenorandum states that "a bill which did
not contain any provision for future increases in the mninmm
wage based on the CPI would probably not be considered

[ substantially the sane neasure].” He commented that this
| anguage is "still in the gray area." Representative Kott noted
that Ms. Craver had cl osed the paragraph by suggesting, "It is a
much closer question [if] the bill contains an escal ator clause
based on the CPI. This mght be simlar enough that [a] court
would find that the bill supplants the initiative."

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested that clearly the legislative Act
doesn't need to conformto the initiative in all respects, and
that it 1is intended that the legislature should have sone
di scretion in deciding how far the legislative Act should differ
fromthe provisions of the initiative. He said he doesn't think
[the Dbill] wvaries to the extent it has gone outside the
paraneters of the |egislative powers.

Nunmber 1906

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if this could be construed as the
public voting to make an appropriation on behalf of the
| egi sl ature.

V. CRAVER said she hadn't considered this issue until
Representative Halcro nentioned it earlier. She offered that
she hasn't done research in that area of |aw, and cannot even
say what guidelines are used to determne whether it is close
enough to be an appropriation.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said it appears that if [HB 56] passed,
and the CPlI portion is enacted, then it isn't a "one-tine kick."
This is going to be a constant step increase that the governnent
won't have a say over, and that gets to the heart of the
questi on.

Nunmber 1858

M5. CRAVER responded that it seens to her, wthout doing any
research, that increasing the mninmm wage wll have nyriad
effects on everybody who purchases things, including the
gover nnment . She said she doesn't know "how close that
connection has to be before the initiative itself is seen as an
i nappropriate use of the initiative power by nmaking an
appropriation.”

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 6, 2002



Nunmber 1837

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to Warren v. Boucher. He said
[HB 56] appears to be alnost identical [to the initiative], with
one nodest change. He questioned why M. Craver was having
trouble venturing an opinion about simlarity. He added, "As
Representative Kott points out, this does give the legislature
sone latitude, and quite frankly, | don’t think we've taken nuch
| atitude at all with [Version F]."

Nunber 1773

M5. CRAVER offered [Legislative Legal and Research Services']
feeling that the CPl difference m ght be enough for a court to
find it isn't substantially simlar. She explained that this is
just an opinion, and not based on case law, and could very
easily be seen as not being that nmuch different.

CHAI R MURKONSKI asked Ms. Craver if the phasing or step approach
to reach the $7.15 m ni mum wage i s any better.

M5. CRAVER asked, "How close does it have to be to identical to

still be substantially simlar?" She suggested that if the
| egi slature takes an approach different from exactly the one
used in the initiative, it wuld be nore successful if the
| egislature could justify why it took a different approach to
reach the same goal. She asked, "If the Ilegislative Act
achieves the sane general purpose, are [the courts] going to
hold your feet to the fire to be exactly identical?" She

answered that it doesn't appear so.
Nunber 1677
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he appreciates the point that M.

Craver is making, and that "the suprene court also nakes the
point that conplexity has a good deal to do wth the

interpretation.” He offered that the entire issue is extrenely
conplex, and in particular the inmpact on the econony of Al aska.
He stated, "It's a macroecononmc action on the part of the
| egislature, and in so far as the pernutations of consuner price
i ndexes, ... the inpact on the individual enployers and workers

is going to be variable.™
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered that the legislative intent of

nerely trying to be as simlar as possible to the initiative
should neet the statutory and constitutional requirenents. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 6, 2002



said that wth the courts giving the legislature the sane
| atitude as they gave in Warren v. Boucher, he didn't have any
problem believing that Version F wuld be "extraordinarily
simlar."

Nunber 1601

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that if [Version F] got the m ni num
wage to the sane place as the initiative, even if it didn't get
there the sane way, then he thought it would be substantially

simlar. He added, "This guarantees that we won't get to the
sane place, because inflation is going to nove at 100 percent
and our wage is going to nove at 50 percent.” He said he
believes a 50-percent-of-the-CPl escalator is a  built-in

inequity. He argued:

The whol e reason for having an escalator is so that it
takes the political argunent out of it every three or
four years, so that we don't have to continue to
revisit this issue. If we |eave the 50-percent CPI
escalator in there, then |I'm sure this wll be
litigated, and the initiative - maybe not this fall -
will go on the ballot at sone point.

Number 1520

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said Article X, Section 7, of the Al aska
constitution addresses the issue of appropriation of funds. He
explained, "My concern is that ... with the tie in, there, to
the 'people transportation' issue, | think there's a legitimte
argunent there, that this - by nature - is appropriating noney."

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he would think adm nistrative |aw has
al ready done that. He referred to a friend who'd tried to put a
Peace Corps issue on the ballot; the opinion was that it dealt
with appropriation, and subsequently it was thrown off. He
stated, "I'm assuming in their deliberation, the Departnent of
Law, the attorney general, and the |ieutenant governor's staff
does ... decide ... before it ever is certified.” He suggested
that should be verified.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed wth Representative Hayes that
for this ballot [neasure] to reach this point, it has been
reviewed by the attorney general for constitutionality. He said
the legislature could repeal the people [transportation] statute
to rectify that point. Representative Rokeberg said he finds it
interesting that an attached fiscal note from the Departnent of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 6, 2002



Health and Social Services indicates a $500,000 figure for
transfer of paynent from the governnent over to the private

sector by raising the wages. He remarked, "So, there's a
transfer of responsibility right in the fiscal note. | don't
believe that the constitution ... takes that into account.”
Number 1380

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyist for the AFL-CI O testified before the
comm ttee. He said, "Qur official stance is, until we neet ...
with the AFL-CIO here on the 19th, that we're sticking with our
initiative |language and we're going to follow up with that.” He
explained that if with [the wage increase] is to split it into
t wo st eps, [the AFL-ClI g al r eady tried t hat option
unsuccessfully in the past. That is why the proposed wage
increase is "in one junmp."

Nunber 1323

CHAI R MURKOWSKI reported that there had been at |east two other
opi nions requested of Legislative Legal and Research Services
during the interim The first asked whether a m ni num wage bil
that didn't allow for a CPI would be considered substantially
[simlar]. The opinion received from Terry Craner said no.
Anot her opi ni on, requested in Cctober, asked, "Is it
substantially simlar if you do the wages to the sane |evel as
the initiative, but instead of using the CPI, you attach it to
average weekly wage?" She reported that the opinion received
was "probably not." She said the questions have been asked, but
she'd been told there wouldn't be any definitive answers. She
concluded, "I don't know that we know anything nore about what
"substantially simlar' really neans. It sounds |ike we just
have to go test it."

Nunber 1214

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT offered that the issue seens to be divided
on whether or not it would nmeet the test of being substantially
simlar.

Nunmber 1180

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noved to adopt Anendnent 1 [22-
LS0342\F. 2, Craver, 2/6/02], which read:

Page 2, line 11:
Del ete "50"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 6, 2002



| nsert "100"
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he believes that wthout the
escalator [for the wage increase] as it was in the petition, it
seens not to be substantially simlar. He offered that the
people he has talked to would rather not go through the
litigation process, but would if they have to. He stated, "W
don't want to guarantee in law that the mninmum wage is going to
i ncrease slower than prices.”

Nunber 1125
REPRESENTATI VE HAYES i nqui red about the process.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT answered that if HB 56 were to pass both
bodies and be signed into law by the governor, there probably
[ woul d have] been sone discussion with the |ieutenant governor
who woul d have nade her suggestions regardi ng whether [HB 56] is
substantially simlar. He said he suspects that if [HB 56]
becane |law, there wouldn't be the inpetus - from the people in
"l abor” or anywhere else - to challenge the legislation' s being
substantially simlar because it doesn't reach that 100 percent
of the CPI index.

Nunber 1024

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT pointed out, "It's only understood that the
CPlI index is at 100 percent. It's not witten in the
initiative. C So we're making it clear that where we're
comng from it's 50 percent of the CPI index." He agreed with

Representative Rokeberg's point that this is an incredibly
conpl ex issue when tal king about the CPlI, the inpact on econony,
and the inpact on businesses, especially the small businesses
payi ng m ni nrum wage.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT expressed that HB 56 wouldn't just affect
t hose nmaking m nimum wage. There would al so be sone inpact for

those in the "m d-managenent ... arena,"” who also would receive
an increase in benefits. He explained that if the bill becones
law, then the initiative cones off [the ballot]. However, if
t he | i eut enant gover nor "det erm nes t hat this IS not
substantially simlar, then the initiative goes forward, and
maybe we'l |l chal |l enge the |ieutenant governor's decision.”

Number 0946

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO agreed and said by inplenenting even 50
percent of the CPl, [at least] it's still 50 percent of the CPI

He noted that currently the mninmm wage isn't indexed to the
CPl, and that, coupled with the two-tiered junp in the wage, is

sufficient. He offered, "Certainly, we're all supportive of the
m ni rum wage." He added, however, that there are econom es out
there with real people who have to nmke real payroll, and this

is going to have an effect on them

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noted that |ast year there were "severa
different conversations” with regard to this bill about what
[effect this will have on statewi de projects |ike the proposed
gas pipeline, for exanple]. He reiterated that he thinks just
adopting the CPI and going through a review process every year
is sufficient. He offered that 50 percent of the CPI is fair to
start out with, and can always be adjusted in the future. He
said, "I just think we need to be very sincere in our efforts to
i nprove the working environment, but also be very careful about
not negatively inpacting conmerce."”

Number 0836

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he wunderstands there are real
people out there nmking real payroll. There are also real
people out there trying to make a "living wage," who wll be
affected as nuch as the enployers, if not nore. He said he
believes wth only a 50-percent-of-the-CPl escal at or, it

guarantees that it won't keep pace with inflation. He said he
believes HB 56, with the escalator, was designed to keep [the
| egi slature] from having to revisit this issue every few years.
He offered that it would be "much nore difficult to conme back
and take another look at it wth the snaller escalator in
there."

Number 0772

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he doesn't disagree, but thinks the
two-tiered bump in the wage, conbined with even 50 percent of

the CPI, is a significant nove toward inproving wages. He
added, "W also need to renenber that people don't give
t hensel ves | obs. Enpl oyers create |jobs. And so we have to

maintain a very delicate balance when you're talking about
affecting, especially, these entry-level workers."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated his opposition to the CPl concept
as attached to the mninmmwage bill. He said, "Once we as a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 6, 2002



| egi slature were to enact that, it's going to get very difficult
to back away from it, ... [because] it takes it out of
di scussion. " He offered that he considers this a collective-
bargaining process, at arms Ilength, between enployers and
enpl oyees. Referring to the economc recession of 1986, he
said, "The wage levels that were established then, before that,
went down to a |ower level than they did before.” He added that
if there is a statutory situation with a high mnimm wage
attached to an escalator, it isn't going to react to the market
condi tions.

Nunber 0624

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he had requested some information | ast
year regarding which businesses actually pay mninmm wage. He
remarked that it is very difficult to hire anybody at m ninum
wage i n Fairbanks.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT, after handing a list to Representative
Hayes, explained that it indicates the types of industries, not
specific enployers, that pay m ni num wage.

Nunmber 0567

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI informed the commttee that last vyear the
seafood industry testified that it had many enployees starting
at mninmum wage, but that travel and room and board were
provi ded.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked, "Is the extra 50 percent the straw
that breaks the canel's back? | don't know." He said there was
testinony last year and during the interimthat HB 56 was goi ng
to have a negative effect on many businesses around the state,
especially in the service industries. Despite perhaps sone
optimsmout there, there are going to be jobs lost. He offered
that wage earners trying to make ends neet mght be unable to,
because enployers are going to be "tightening their belt."” The
greatest cost to enployers is personnel, and it's the first
pl ace an enployer is going to nmake reductions. He said:

The market's only going to bear so much of an increase
on a product or a service, and once it reaches that

pi nnacl e, people are going to back off, saying, "I'm
not payi ng anynore. |"m staying at hone, cook ny own
hanmburgers, rather that go out and eat.” So | think
there's going to be sonme ... negativity associated

with [its] going to the CPlI in the beginning. But at

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 6, 2002



|l east this mtigates part of that problem by keeping
it at the 50 percent, rather than going to 100

per cent. So for all those reasons, | wll oppose the
amendnent .
Nunmber 0416
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD sai d maybe the per diem should go up by
50 percent of the CPlI, instead of follow ng the Consuner Price
| ndex. He stated, "If it's good for us, | think it's good for

all those people that are out there in | owwage jobs."

CHAI R MURKOWBKI responded that it seens that "[ours] has gone
down from year to year, too. So I'm not sure that's it's tied
to the CPI. It's tied to the federal COLA [cost-of-living
al l owance].” She added, "As it goes down, we take the drop in
our per diemas well."

Number 0364

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said, "I don't believe we have any contro
over that, either, with the exception that if you wanted to give
back the extra to LAA [Legislative Affairs Agency] or to House
Rules, I'll be nore than glad to accept."”

Nunber 0272

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Crawford and Hayes
voted to adopt Anendnent 1. Representatives Meyer, Kott,
Rokeberg, Halcro, and Mirkowski voted against it. Ther ef or e,
Amendnent 1 failed by a vote of 2-5.

Number 0230

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noved to adopt Anmendnent 2 [22-
LS0342\F. 4, Craver, 2/6/02], which read:

Page 2, following line 17:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 3. AS 23.10.065 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(d) An enployer, with the agreenent of the
enpl oyee, may pay up to $2 less than the hourly wage
required under (a) of this section if the anount of
the reduction is wused by the enployer to provide
adequate health care as defined by the comm ssioner."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 6, 2002



Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.
Number 0215

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD explained that Ilast year there was
di scussion that sone enployers would like to raise the mninm
wage but then wouldn't be able to afford health care for their
enpl oyees. Amendnent 2 would give enployers sone |atitude and
help in providing health <care for their enployees. The
agreenent [provision] allows either side to opt out. He noted
that many people approaching the five-year limt on welfare are
going to be kicked off the welfare rolls and wll need
i nsurance. Amendnent 2 would give them sone |atitude to go out
and find a |lowpaying job plus health care for famly nenbers.
He concluded, "I just believe this gives both enployers and
enpl oyees sone latitude to gain health care that they haven't
had before.”

Number 0076

CHAI R MURKONBKI asked Representative Crawford whet her [Amendnent
2] would run into legal problens because it is setting in
statute a mninmm wage. She inquired whether it would be
creating yet another exenption from the m ninum wage, simlar to
the trai ni ng wage.

TAPE 02-13, SIDE A
Number 0004

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD expl ai ned that when "it started out,

we thought that this would probably have no effect, but as we
continued on, ... we're not sure now." He said if [Arendnent 2]
is going to change [HB 56] too nuch, he would be glad to
introduce it as stand-al one |egislation.

Number 0120

M5. CRAVER commented that it appears [Amendnent 2] would not
necessarily reduce the mnimum wage for anyone who didn't want

it to be reduced. In that case, it seens to be an option that
doesn't necessarily change the inpact of the |egislation, which
is to increase the m nimum wage. She said [Legislative Lega

and Research Services doesn't] know the answer to the question
of whether adding [anmendnments] to legislation that tries to
supplant an initiative makes it not substantially simlar. She

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- February 6, 2002



noted that she hasn't been able to research it. One could make
an argunent that it doesn't inpair what is intended in the
initiative. The people who wanted the initiative still get what
they want, if, in fact, it is substantially simlar. Addi ng
sonet hing el se doesn't change that.

Nunber 0202

CHAIR MURKOWEKI referred to the |anguage in [Amendnent 2] and
said it is allowing the commssioner to determ ne whether
adequate health care has been provided. She asked, "That's kind
of nebulous, isn't it?"

M5. CRAVER responded that "this would have to be fleshed out
considerably further” in order to satisfy the federa
gover nnment .

Number 0290

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT offered an exanple of an enployer with 20
m ni rum wage enpl oyees who also are being provided health care.
He said the suggested changes would force the enployer to tell
the enployees that due to cost-cutting neasures, health care
woul d be reduced or discontinued. If the enployee and the
enpl oyer agreed to deduct $2 an hour from the wages, then the
enpl oyer could nmake a contribution [to keep] the enployee's
health care. He asked, "Wuldn't that have a substantive effect
of reducing their m ninumwage $2°?"

MS. CRAVER agreed it would be the practical effect.
Number 0400

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT restated his concern: an enployer currently
paying premuns for health care would have to tell an enpl oyee
that either he/she agrees to deduct $2 [from the hourly wage],
or else health care will be discontinued altogether.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO responded, "In theory, but ... let's be
honest . C The people out there that need health care are
people that are making $5.65, $6.00 an hour, and ... can't
afford to participate in an enployer-sponsored program®" He
said he thinks Representative Crawford is "onto sonething

very good," and offered that there should be sone tweaking of
the |anguage regarding how it is applied, from a practical
standpoint, for a business owner. He suggested the [health care
option] is kind of an incentive for the enployer. An enpl oyer

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- February 6, 2002



can go to a health care provider and get sone kind of plan to
whi ch enpl oyees can buy in.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO explained that this would do a couple of

t hi ngs. It would build loyalty for the enployer, because a
| oner -wage enployee with benefits is nore likely to stay on and
become a longer-term nore productive enployee. And the

enpl oyee would be better off because of having access to health
care [insurance].

Nunmber 0547

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT replied, "It's a great idea, but | think the
enployers right now can do that." He offered that if an
enpl oyee with a famly of four is making $350 a week, $80 out of
a paycheck nmay be the difference between having health care and
not having a house to live in.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD rebutted, "That's the reason why we put
it in there with the agreenent of the enployee.” The enpl oyee
has the option of deducting noney from his/her wages to cover
health care costs. He said the expense that hits single nothers
the hardest is nedical coverage for their kids. He surm sed,
"There are a |lot of people ... that would |like to have health
care and woul d give up $2 out of their mninumwage to do that."

Number 0640

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to an exanple of sonebody working
two jobs, where at one job, the enpl oyer could deduct $2 an hour
and the enployee would know that noney was going towards health

i nsur ance. He said this program obviously has to be nutually
agr eeabl e. He asked, "Wat's wong wth ... having this
opportunity?" He said it seens to be one nore option for an

enpl oyer to manage the business and to provide coverage for
t hose enpl oyees who otherw se are not covered, sinply because of
their skill and wage |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said, "I also think we're onto sonething
here, Representative Crawford, but | don't think nowis the tine
and place to deal with this, especially not with this particular
bill before us." He said he would like to see what adequate
health care coverage is, as defined by the conm ssioner.

Nunber 0764

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surmsed, "It's whatever $320 a nonth
can buy you."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD responded that $320 a nonth won't buy
adequate health care, and the balance would have to be nade up

by the enployer. He explained what [the bill] envisioned as
adequate health care is about the sane as [the third, |ower-cost
option] on the state [insurance plan]. He said, "W're not
trying to go for really good insurance; we're just trying to get
the average case of insurance out there." He stated that this
will give the enployer a break when he/she is trying to provide
benefits to enployees, in order for [the enployer] to have

| onger-term nore |oyal enployees.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered his belief that if HB 56 passes,
enpl oyers that still pay mninum wages are going to be lucky to
be able to afford to provide any benefits. He added, "So |
think it'lIl cost benefits.”

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he can't agree with that concl usion
because "you're telling them one thing and then you're asking
them another.” He explained that [the |legislature] is going to
tell [the enployers] that the mninmum wage will be raised by
roughly $2 an hour. On the other hand, [the legislature is]
saying, "But, we wll allow you to deduct up to $2 an hour to
contribute to an enployee health care plan or into sone kind of
a pool, if you so choose.” He suggested this is an opportunity
for enpl oyers, not a nandate.

Nunber 1000
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO offered that possibly the insurance
i ndustry could "cone out with a product.” He said:

There's conpanies comng out wth all ki nds of

products all the tinme. My conpany takes a look at it
every year when we renew our insurance coverage for
our enpl oyees. . [ There are] all kinds of
different products out there, and if you can get the
i nsurance conpanies to create a narket where they
create a product for these folks to buy in at $320 a

nonth, why wouldn't we want to at |east set the
stage for that kind of an option? | nean, we're not
mandati ng anyt hing. W're sinply giving them an
opportunity to take that $2-an-hour hit, either way
you look at it, and investing it in sonething that's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- February 6, 2002



going to pay them returns. | don't see where this
isn't a good idea.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT, referring to the health <care program
Representative Halcro said he provided his enployees, asked what
the premumis: "lIs it $320, or is it simlar to what the state
pays for adequate health care?" He said he doesn't think the
state plan is a premum plan, but is probably a plan that would
be acceptable [to] the comm ssioner. He offered that an
enployee is not only getting hit with the $2 increase, which can
be applied toward health care, but also is adding on whatever
additional anount there is to reach that prem um He said, "So
it may not be a $320 premium it's now going to be a $500 hit."

Nunmber 1080

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expl ai ned that conpanies such as his offer
sonme type of health care [plan] that would fit into this, which
is supplenental health insurance. He clainmed a conflict because
this probably woul d benefit his conpany greatly.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "So, what you're saying is ... if
you adopted sonething like this, where it was totally voluntary
- the two sides had to agree - sure, there's products out there
that coul d get sonebody covered for this."

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES r esponded, "Absolutely."

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said, "You did say that it was suppl enental.
So it's suppl enenting sonething el se.™

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expl ai ned, "The insurance that we sell is
supplemental. And we prefer that it's with sonething el se, but
it can stand al one.™

Nunmber 1168

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that because of the voluntary
nature, he believes "this is an avenue that we need to explore"
because many people out there need health care but aren't
getting it. He offered that this is a good first step. The
cost is $320 a month if a person is working 40 hours a week, but
if that person is working overtine, it's nore. He noted that
his insurance with the state has fam |y coverage at 70 percent
[up to the yearly maxinmun]; it costs $500-sone a nonth. He said
he believes that with another dollar or tw dollars an hour, an

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- February 6, 2002



enpl oyer could supplenent this and conme up with a pretty good
i nsurance policy.

Nunber 1250

CHAIR MJURKOWSEKI objected to Amendnent 2 because there is no
certainty that Version F is substantially simlar [to the
initiative]; adding to it will raise further suspicion that it
isn't substantially simlar. She said she isn't stating whether
she thinks it's a good idea, but isn't wlling to support it at
this tine.

Number 1315

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD countered that [the legislature is]
"charging blindly ahead on the other issue,” not know ng whether
it's substantially simlar or not. He said, "We're going to run
it up the flagpole and see if it flies, and I'd like to run this
one up and see if it flies as well."

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said, "I just hope you run it up a different
fl agpol e.” He offered his belief that HB 56, as it currently
stands, is substantially simlar and would neet the test; any
changes woul d jeopardize the bill substantially. He referred to
a section of law that deals with school bus drivers, where a
provi sion says an enployer may not apply fringe benefits as a

credit for payment of m ninum wage. He said, "So even in that
particular area, we've gone so far as to say, 'You can't give
any credit.'" Wth Amendnent 2, he said, "the area just becane

totally conplex.™
Nunber 1387

CHAI R MJURKOABKI said she'd spoken with representatives from the
seaf ood industry |ast year, who were |looking to see if there was
a way that they could get sone offset of the m ninum wage for
what they contribute in ternms of room and board and travel.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD remarked, "In NCSL [National Conference
on State Legislatures], they said that you could give waivers
agai nst the federal mninmm wage for things like health care,
for training wages. So, maybe it conflicts with our state |aw. "

Number 1433

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked: Since health care reform is an
energing area in federal law, who is to say that enployers n ght

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- February 6, 2002



not get sone kind of a tax credit for participating in a program
through which they create an avenue for their enployees to
obtain affordable health care coverage? Stating support for
[ Arendnent 2], Representative Halcro suggested that enployers
not only would win by having another option to hire and retain
enpl oyees, but also they could avail thenselves of certain tax
credits or breaks by providing sonmething like this.

Number 1500

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Crawford, Hayes
and Halcro voted for Anendnent 2. Representatives Kott,
Rokeberg, Meyer, and Mirkowski voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 2 failed by a vote of 3-4.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked how HB 56 deals with the fisheries
i ndustry and the housing of workers.

Nunmber 1526

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT responded that [HB 56] doesn't assist that
particul ar industry. He offered that the seafood industry is
failing right now, and "this could be the nail that seals the
coffin." He suggested form ng stand-al one | egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT remarked that he is a little disturbed that
there hasn't been nore testinony from organized |abor on this

nonunent al i ssue. He said last year [organized |abor was] at
the table and said it supported the bill in its existing form at
the tinme, the last version. He explained that the previous

version didn't have the CPlI index, "but they supported that."
He stated that at the tinme, [organized |abor said] it liked the
governor's bill a little better because it did have the CPI. He
said, "I just wanted to put that on the record, and | hope
during their deliberations on the 18th that they can reach sone
ki nd of agreenent and support the particular neasure before this
body. O herwise, we don't know what's comng down the

pibe."
Nunber 1611

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI agreed with Representative Kott. She added that
she was hopeful that there would be a little nore enthusiasm
from|[organized | abor on HB 56].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG declared that he has a potentia
conflict of interest as a small businessman with 19 people

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- February 6, 2002



currently on his payroll, all earning above $7.15 an hour. He
asked to be excused fromvoting.

CHAI R MURKOWABKI declined his request.
Nunber 1649
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that narket wages should be

set by the market, rather than by politicians and | abor | eaders
sitting together naking policy. He offered that this "is 180

degrees off from collective bargaining.” The small businessnman
and the worker are only represented by their representatives at
the neeting, and they' re not bargaining. Each i ndi vi dual
busi ness has its own unique set of circunstances. Calling this
a "unilateral Act," he noted that HB 56 is a response to the
initiative, "which, in a way, is ... a 26-percent increase [in]
personnel cost for a lot of businesses in this state.” He said
it's particularly targeted at the hospitality industry because
the tip provisions were drafted right into the initiative. He

suggested that [the hospitality industry] 1is +the |argest
enpl oyer in Al aska, and has been picked on. He expl ai ned:

W're asking them for increased taxation for basic

commodity and products that they're selling. W' re
actually going to tax them on ... about three
different levels right now, from sales taxes to incone
t axes, business taxes, and alcohol taxes. C Not

only are we going to do that, we're going to raise
their | abor cost by 26 percent.

Tourism and seafoods industry are the two industries
that are down the worst in this state right now  And

what this bill does is just drives a ... nail in [the]
coffins of a lot of small businesses. And | pride
nyself [on] being a small businessman, living off ny

own wits for 38 years in the state of Al aska, being
sel f - enpl oyed.

| must say that | think this is a terrible thing. The
timng couldn't be worse for the econony, and this is
going to destroy small businesses and decrease jobs,

particularly in t he hospitality and seaf ood
industries. | can't vote for it. Never, never.
Nunber 1755

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- February 6, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD offered to cosponsor a bill wth

Representative Rokeberg to nmake it uni ver sal col l ective
bargaining for all of those people who don't get «collective
bargai ning right now. He said, "Then we could do away with the
m ni nrum wage. Until everybody gets a chance to do collective

bargaining, that's the reason why we have a fl oor underneath."”

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES explained that this is an interesting
situation because if HB 56 doesn't nove out of conmttee, there
will be an initiative on the ballot anyway. He said, "Then we
could leave it up to our constituents to decide if they want
this increase or not."

Nunmber 1796

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said Representative Hayes had nade a good
poi nt . He argued that the initiative does nore harm than [HB
56] does. He said, "I could live wth it either way, and I
would love to be on the other side of the canpaign trying to
defeat the initiative." He offered that there would be a | ot of

noney thrown at either supporting the initiative or opposing it,
and he suggested that "maybe that's where we should let it go."
He pointed out that based on all the surveys and opinions he has
seen, the initiative and m ni numwage increase are supported by

a vast mpjority of Al askans, around 80 percent. He added, "And
that's in everybody's district. W all know the recent poll
that was done in Septenber, Cctober. And that was after, |

bel i eve, [ Septenber 11]."
Number 1860

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER argued that he isn't sure nuch attention
shoul d be given to polls because [the legislature is] here to do
the right thing, not necessarily what's the popul ar thing. He
recalled that when he was on the assenbly there were polls, for
exanple, for an alcohol tax, with as high as 75- to 80-percent
support. When a large industry begins advertising against it,
the nunbers in the poll can slip, and then it ultimately gets to
a vote and fails. He asked if the State Chanmber of Commerce has
voi ced an opinion as to whether it would, if the initiative went
to a vote, have an advertising canpaign to try to kill it.

CHAIR MJRKOWABKI said she didn't have any information on that
i ssue. She suggested that Representative Kott m ght have that
i nformation.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said he didn't have that information either.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- February 6, 2002



Number 1920

MS. SYLVESTER said she'd spoken with Panela LaBolle from the
State Chanber of Commerce and explained to her the new proposed
commttee substitute [Version F]. Ms. Sylvester reported that
Ms. LaBolle was perplexed |ast year because one-third of her
menbership supported [the legislation], one-third didn't |Iike
it, and one-third didn't care. She said Ms. LaBolle had been
informed that the hearing was today, but wasn't present.

CHAIR MURKOASKI, referring to polls and surveys, said sone folks
say they support an increase to a mninmm wage, but don't fully
understand what it means to go fromthe standard that Al aska has
al ways had, tying it to the federal mninmum wage, to a
conpletely different standard, which is what [HB 56 is doing].
She remarked that her husband, as a self-enployed smal

busi nessman, "would love to think that he could give an annual

increase just for being there.” She offered that she isn't
entirely certain how accurate the surveys are, because it
depends on what the question is. |It's one thing to ask, "Do you
support an increase to the mnimum wage?" It's another to ask

"Do you agree and understand what the terns of the initiative
are?"

Nunber 1994

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noted that Representative Mirkowski nade
an excellent point. He said the surveys received |ast year -
both from the Al aska State Chanber of Commerce and the Nationa
Federati on of |ndependent Business - showed a strikingly simlar

extrapol ation of data when |ooking at the questions. He noted
that support for the mninmm wage, or the |ack thereof, was 45
to 50 percent, right in the mddle. He explained that the

percentage of respondents who do not pay their enployees m ni nmum
wage was incredibly high: 95 percent on both surveys. He said
this leads himto believe that "when the average Al askan, who is
one of these 95 percent who's not meking m ninmum wage, goes to
the polls and says, 'Yeah, you know what, | think my ... grocery
packer needs a raise,’ ... people are going to vote because it
doesn't affect them™

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO offered that [an escalator at] 50 percent
of the CPlI is reasonable, whereas 100 percent of the CPl is

going to hurt a lot nore. He asked, "Should we mtigate,
adhere, and try and reach for sonething that's workable, or do
we just back off and ... let the people of this state vote on

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 38- February 6, 2002



this issue?" He said it is a policy question and that he thinks
the conmttee should nove [HB 56].

Nunber 2078

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD agreed with Representative Rokeberg that
a 26-percent increase is "a shock to the system of all small
busi nessnmen and | arge businessnen or any other businessnmen you
want to talk to." He argued that if there were a consuner price
i ndexer the last tine the mninum wage was raised, "today we
woul dn't have to be hitting this with a large increase.” He
mentioned that even M. Anon had said he'd "prefer to see the
consuner price index in there ... rather than see us be $1 over
the federal mninum wage." He suggested a consunmer price
i ndexer wll take away the shock that happens every four or five
years.

Nunber 2140

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT, referring to a poll taken October 9-17,
2001, said the question was asked relating to the initiative
that would raise the mninmum wage [increnentally] and then
adj ust the m ni num wage annually to match inflation. He said a
| ot of people aren't really sure what inflation neans. He noted
that "75 percent of Alaskans, ... plus or mnus 4 percent margin
of error, ... supports that." Then the specific question was
asked in the poll, "Do you favor or oppose thereafter adjusting
the mnimum wage annually to match inflation?” Representati ve
Kott reported that the margin actually increased to 77 percent
of those who support it.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT suggested this is a clear indication that
the general public is supporting [it]. He said he isn't sure if
one could overcone "that kind of deficit going in." He said if
the legislature doesn't pass HB 56, it will be taking the chance
that the mninumwage initiative wll be defeated. He stated,
"W want to mtigate as much of the ... negative inpact on
busi ness that we possibly can. Just put sonmething that [is] not
quite as harnful."

Number 2241

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he wasn't opposed to noving [HB 56].
He asked whether it could be noved without a fiscal note.

CHAI R MJURKOABKI infornmed Representative Myer that there were
two fiscal notes. She said there was sonme di scussi on of whet her

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 39- February 6, 2002



the "people transportation” cost should be factored in after
2005.

Nunber 2275

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT noved to report CSHB 56, version 22-
LS0342\F, Craver, 1/18/02, out of commttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.

CHAI R MURKOWNSKI asked if Representative Rokeberg wi shed to speak
to his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if there was any further objection. There
being no further objection, CSHB 56(L& ) was noved from the
House Labor and Conmerce Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:40 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -40- February 6, 2002



